
 
BOROUGH OF FAIR LAWN 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
Regular Meeting 

of February 22, 2007 
 
Following are the minutes of the Fair Lawn Zoning Board of Adjustment's regular 
meeting held on Thursday, February 22, 2007. 
 
Chairman Scott Levy called the regular meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. and declared that 
the meeting was being held in accordance with the Open Public Meeting Law. 
 
Roll Call:  Present were: Mr. Karas, Mr. Nakashian, Ms. Spindel,  
  Mr. Sacchinelli, Mr. Blecher, Mr. Diner, Mr. Charipper and Mr. Levy. 
 
 Absent were: Mr. Meer, Mr. Newman and Mr. Salerno.  Mr. Meer and Mr. 

Newman were on vacation and Mr. Salerno had a meeting. 
 
Also in attendance were William Soukas, Board Attorney; Karen Kocsis, Court Reporter; 
Ann Peck, Assistant Zoning Officer and Carol LoPiccolo, Zoning Board Clerk. 
 
Residential Old Business:  
 

1. Application #2007-002, Felix Strashnov 
2 Harris Place, Block 2708, Lot 18, Zone R-1-2 
The proposed new single family dwelling would have existing lot frontage of 
80.77’ and 83.22’ where 75’x100’ is required on a corner lot as per Section 125-
12 Schedule of area, yard and building requirements. 

 
Mr. Soukas:  "This application was heard last month and the motion was made to 
deny this application and the motion did not carry.  A motion should have been 
made to approve the application and this was not done.  There will be no public 
comment." 

 
Mr. Charipper:  "Who made the motion?" 

 
Mr. Soukas:  "Mr. Karas made the motion and Ms. Spindel seconded the motion." 

 
Mr. Charipper made a motion to approve this application.  Mr. Nakashian 
seconded the motion. 

 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas - "No.  When this motion was made, they were short on 
frontage.  Once they're required to come before this board, this should not be a 
rubber stamp.  There was testimony about 2 issues - 1 was flooding, although 
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some members thought it required expert testimony, any lay person can testify.  
The major issue was the building itself was not in keeping with the character of 
the neighborhood." 

 
Mr. Karas read N.J.S.A. 40:55D-2(i) and N.J.S.A. 40:55D-62(a).    

 
Mr. Karas:  "There was testimony from neighbors within 200' that this particular 
house was so large and is out of character with the neighborhood."   

 
Mr. Karas also read Dallemeyer vs. Lacy Township. 

 
Mr. Charipper:  "Yes, these cases exist, but they are not the controlling factor in 
voting.  There are many factors taken into consideration.  I have a problem with 
all of this being read into the record." 

 
Mr. Levy:  "Had it not been for a few feet of frontage, this application would not 
even have been here.  Although it can be discussed about the aesthetics of the 
house, that is not the controlling factor in the variance." 

 
Mr. Karas:  "I would like to finish.  The reason why I went into this is because 
some of the Board members felt compelled to vote to approve this due to legal 
reasons." 

 
Mr. Levy:  "That is not the controlling law.  You quoted one part of the law." 

 
Mr. Charipper:  "You are creating a bad precedence here.  What you are doing is 
wrong.  This is not a controlling factor.  I have a problem with your method and 
your comments to the record." 

 
Ms. Spindel:  "Are we obligated to vote the way we did the last time?" 

 
Mr. Levy:  "We have to make a motion to approve this and you need to vote 
accordingly." 

 
VOTE:  Mr. Nakashian - "Yes." 

   Ms. Spindel - "No. I felt this house was not going to enhance the  
neighborhood and the flooding was not addressed." 

   Mr. Sacchinelli, Mr. Blecher, Mr. Charipper and Mr. Levy - Yes. 
 

Mr. Levy:  "The flooding situation that was described was not due to the onsite 
situation.  There is something wrong with the piping in the street and this 
applicant has no control over this.  This is not an undersized lot.  If not for the 
frontage, this would not have been before this Board.  The applicant made note 
that he was placing the house at an angle off the streetscape.  It was based on that 
all the houses were ranch style houses and one neighbor stated why is this man 
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allowed to add a second floor.  That can't be a reason to deny it.  In addition, the 
height was also lowered." 

 
 APPLICATION APPROVED. 
 
Mr. Levy announced the following adjournments: 
 
Commercial Old Business: 
 

1. Application #2006-018, Sebastian E. Lentini (McDonald’s) 
37-01 Broadway, Block 2320, Lots 10-12, Zone B-2/R-1-3 
Amendment to approved use/site plan approval requires site plan approval as per 
RGO Section 125-6.  Application carried to April 23, 2007. 

 
2. Application #2006-038, 37-10 Broadway, LLC (Zap Lube) 

37-02/37-10 Broadway, Block 2201, Lot 2, Zone B-2 
The placement of a billboard sign on the property located at 37-01 through 37-10 
Broadway, Block 2201, Lot 3.  The billboard requires a use variance as the 
service is provided at another location RGO Section 125-57(d)(1).    Application 
carried to March 26, 2007. 

 
Residential Old Business: 
 

1. Application # 2006-078, Vladimir Taran and Sergey Zavrazhnoz 
17-42 Hunter Place, Block 2803, Lot 15, Zone R-1-2 
Existing lot is 6,574.7 s.f. where 7,500 s.f. is required.  The proposed expansion 
would have existing side yard setbacks of 5.9’ and 6.1’ where 12’ is required.  
Would have existing front yard setback of 26.2’ where 30’ is required.  Would 
increase the impervious coverage from 35.9% to 36.6% where only 35% is 
permitted as per RGO Section 125-12 Schedule of area, yard and building 
requirements. Application carried to March 26, 2007. 

 
Residential Old Business: 

 
1. Application #2007-006, Simon Zarour 

9 VanSaun Place, Block 2514, Lot 34, Zone R-1-2 
Existing lot has 6,819 s.f. where 7,500 s.f. is required.  Existing lot frontage of 65’ 
where 75’ is required.  The proposed 2 story addition and 2nd floor would have 
existing front yard setback of 25.8’ where 30’ is required as per Section 125-12 
Schedule of area, yard and building requirements. 
 
Ira Levine, attorney for the applicant came forward along with Simon Zarour.  
They were all sworn in including Glenn Stubaus, Architect, Molinari & Stubaus 
Architects. 
 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
2/22/07 – Minutes 
Page 4 
 
 

Fees totalling $88.00 have been paid and there is proof of service. 
 
Mr. Levine:  "This is an application for an addition.  The lot is undersized by 
being 6,800 s.f. and is in a 7,500 s.f. zone.  The front setback is 25.8' where 30' is 
required.  These conditions are existing." 
 
Mr. Stubaus:  "The application is to construct an addition onto an existing cape 
code house.  It is in a R-1-2 zone.  The existing lot is 65' in width by 104' in 
depth, which makes it undersized.  The existing house is setback at 25.8' where 
30' is required.  The proposal is to construct an addition at the rear of the house 
and conforms to all zoning requirements.  The second floor conforms as well, 
including the side yard, rear yard, building and impervious coverage.  The new 
second floor addition will be constructed in line with the existing first floor." 
 
Drawings were marked as Exhibit A-1 and A-2. 
 
Mr. Nakashian:  "What is the height?" 
 
Mr. Stubaus:  "26.5' to the mean.  To the ridge it is less than 35'." 
 
Mr. Karas:  "According to the plans, the height to the peak it is 32'." 
 
Ms. Peck:  "The Ordinance is 30' to the mean measured from the center of the 
street." 
 
Mr. Karas:  "Can the height be lowered even though it complies with the 
Ordinance?" 
 
Mr. Stubaus:  "A lot of things can be done with the roof.  I'll speak with the 
applicant." 
 
Mr. Levine presented a photo of 14 Van Saun Place and it was marked as Exhibit 
A-3. 
 
Mr. Levine:  "Do you know the height of this house?" 
 
Mr. Stubaus:  "Approximately 28' to the mean, and to the ridge of the roof it 
would be similar to this house." 
 
Mr. Levine presented a photo of 32-15 Nicholson Drive and it was marked as 
Exhibit A-4. 
 
Mr. Stubaus:  "This is a smaller house and I would say this roof at the highest 
point would be around 28'." 
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Mr. Levine presented a photo of 31 Nicholson Drive and it was marked as 
Exhibit A-5. 
 
Mr. Stubaus:  "I would say the roof on this is not more than 25' or 26'.  These 
houses are all similar.  The difference is on this application the roof will appear 
higher due to the geometry, but this is more aesthetically pleasing." 
 
Mr. Levine:  "This is consistent with the neighborhood." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "If the pitch of the roof were changed, would it effect the look of the 
house?" 
 
Mr. Stubaus:  "It would not effect the look of the house." 
 
Mr. Zarour indicated that he would reduce the height. 
 
Ms. Spindel:  "What will the façade be?" 
 
Mr. Zarour:  "I will try to keep it in character of the neighborhood of siding and 
stone." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "The front yard setback is 30' required." 
 
Mr. Levine:  "That is correct, the proposed of 25.8' is existing." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "What about the overhang with the steps?" 
 
Mr. Stubaus:  "It is within the 50' allowed." 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200'.  No one came forward.  
Mr. Harvey Rubenstein, 28 Rutgers Terrace came forward and was sworn in.  "I 
have the Ordinance, I'd like to know where it says you can go to 32." 
 
Mr. Stubaus:  "The Code permits 30' to the mean.  The question was what is the 
height of the highest point and it is 32'.  The height to the mean is 26'." 
 
Mr. Rubenstein read from the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Levine:  "This is not excessive in its increase.  There are only pre-existing 
variances." 
 
Mr. Stubaus:  "We will modify the height at the highest point to be at 30' or less." 
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Mr. Charipper made a motion to approve this application.  Mr. Sacchinelli 
seconded the motion. 
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas - "Yes.  This fits in with the neighborhood and there are no 

  increases in the bulk requirements." 
 Mr. Nakashian, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Sacchinelli, Mr. Blecher, 

  Mr. Charipper and Mr. Levy – YES. 
 Mr. Levy agreed with Mr. Karas - Yes. 

 
APPLICATION APPROVED. 
 

Residential New Business: 
 

1. Application #2007-008, Wieslaw and Iwona Okrasinski 
23 Westwood Drive, Block 1111, Lot 4, Zone R-1-3 
Existing lot is 6,400 s.f. where 6,500 s.f. is required.  Existing lot frontage of 64’ 
where 65’ is required.  Proposed addition would have existing side yard setback 
of 6.7’ where 8’ is required as per Section 125-12 Schedule of area, yard and 
building requirements. 
 
Iwona Okrasinski and Wieslaw Okrasinski came forward and were both sworn in. 
Fees totaling $88.00 have been paid and there is proof of service. 
 
Mrs. Krasinski:  "We would like to make a dormer like our neighbor has." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "If not for the Ordinance change would this application be here?" 
 
Ms. Peck:  "No." 
 
Photos were marked as Exhibit A-1. 
 
Mr. Levy:  "What is the height of the dormer?" 
 
Mrs. Okrasinski:  "23.4." 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200' and the general public.  No 
one came forward.  Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Nakashian made a motion to approve this application.  Ms. Spindel seconded 
the motion. 
 
VOTE: Mr. Karas, Mr. Nakashian, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Sacchinelli,  

Mr. Blecher, Mr. Charipper and Mr. Levy - YES. 
 
APPLICATION APPROVED. 
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2. Application #2007-009, Brandon and Jennifer Dittamo 

17-21 Hunter Place, Block 2708, Lot 33, Zone R-1-2 
Existing lot is 6,943 s.f. where 7,500 s.f. is required.  Existing lot frontage of 55’ 
where 75’ is required.  The proposed addition would have existing front yard 
setbacks of 25’ where 30’ is required.  Would have existing side yard setbacks of 
7.5’ and 7.2’ where 10’ is required as per Section 125-12 Schedule of area, yard 
and building requirements. 
 
Brandon and Jennifer Dittamo came forward and were both sworn in. 
Fees totaling $88.00  have been paid and there is proof of service. 
 
Mr. Dittamo:  "We're adding a second level and squaring off the front.  The 
variances we are seeking are existing." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "What is the height?" 
 
Mr. Dittamo:  "23.6' to the mean." 
 
Photos were marked as Exhibit A-1 and A-2.  Mr. Dittamo described the photos. 
 
Mr. Levy:  "The character of your home is similar to the neighborhood?" 
 
Mr. Dittamo:  "Yes." 
 
Mr. Karas:  "The first sheet, is there a proposed covered porch?" 
 
Ms. Peck:  "It is a deck with a roof over it and is less than 1% of the lot." 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200' and the general public.  No 
one from the public came forward.  Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Charipper made a motion to approve this application and Mr. Sacchinelli 
seconded the motion. 
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas, Mr. Nakashian, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Sacchinelli,  

Mr. Blecher, Mr. Charipper and Mr. Levy - YES. 
 
APPLICATION APPROVED. 
 

3. Application #2007-010, William and Jodi Oster 
1-15 Cyril Avenue, Block 4325, Lot 30, Zone R-1-3 
Existing lot is 5,800 s.f. where 6,500 s.f. is required.  Existing lot frontage of 50’ 
where 65’ is required.  The proposed addition would increase the building 
coverage from 25.3% to 26.3% where 25% is permitted.  Would increase the 
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impervious coverage from 36.2% to 37% where 35% is permitted.  Would have 
existing side yard setback of 5.9’ where 8’ is required as per Section 125-12 
Schedule of area, yard and building requirements. 
 
Mr. William Oster came forward and was sworn in and Alfonse Carratora, 
Associate of Murphy Architecture.  Mr. Carratora has testified before Boards and 
was accepted as an expert. 
 
Mr. Carratora:  "The house is an existing non-conformity.  The style is a 
bungalow style house.  The front yard setback is pre-existing.  The left side is in 
violation and is pre-existing.  The right side is where there is a bump out which 
increases the building coverage.  Everything is being expanded on the second 
floor.  The increase is due to a 1.6' cantilever." 
 
Plans were marked as Exhibit A-1 and photos were marked as Exhibit A-2. 
 
Mr. Levy:  "The bump-out is not being extended past the existing roof?" 
 
Mr. Carratora:  "Correct." 
 
Ms. Peck:  "The increase is due to the cantilever." 
 
Mr. Carratora:  "The Osters will keep the style of the house." 
 
Mr. Charipper:  "This is a very straight forward application." 
 
Ms. Spindel:  "It is refreshing for an applicant to keep the style of the house." 
 
Mr. Karas:  "The building coverage is an increase to 26.3%, the plan does not 
show that." 
 
Ms. Peck:  "26.3% is correct as well as the impervious being 37%." 
 
Mr. Nakashian:  "I don't have the elevation.  Is there a change in the roof?" 
 
Mr. Carrotora:  "No." 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200' and the general public.  No 
one came forward.  Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Charipper made a motion to approve this application and Ms. Spindel 
seconded the motion. 
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas, Mr. Nakashian, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Sacchinelli, 
  Mr. Blecher, Mr. Charipper and Mr. Levy – YES. 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
2/22/07 – Minutes 
Page 9 
 
 

 
APPLICATION APPROVED. 
 

4. Application #2007-011, John and Susan Smithlin 
3 Randolph Terrace, Block 3606, Lot 23, Zone R-1-2 
Existing lot is 3,352.50 s.f. where 7,500 s.f. is required.  Existing lot frontage of 
37.25’ where 75’ is required.  The proposed addition would increase the building 
coverage from 22.85% where 33.63% where 25% is permitted.  Would increase 
the impervious coverage from 45.88% to 53.29% where 35% is permitted.  Would 
have existing rear yard of 13.01’ where 20’ is required.  Would have existing side 
yard setback of 8.44’ where 10’ is required as per Section 125-12 Schedule of 
area, yard and building requirements. 
 
Susan and Jack Smithlin came forward and were both sworn in.  Raymond Boos, 
Architect also came forward. 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "We would like to remove an existing porch and expand it to 
accommodate a family room and bathroom." 
 
Mr. Charipper:  "You're asking for an increase in impervious coverage to over 
53.29% and you're increasing the building coverage to over 33%." 
 
Ms. Peck:  "The current lot is only 3,352 s.f." 
 
Mr. Boos:  "The lot is only 47% of what is required." 
 
Mr. Charipper:  "Can you reduce it to under 50%?" 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "We can reduce the size of our patio." 
 
Mr. Boos:  "The proposed patio is in the rear." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "Has this been approved by Radburn?" 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "Yes." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "How does this relate to your neighbors?" 
 
Mrs. Smithlin: "My neighbor already has done the same thing." 
 
Mrs. Smithlin described the photos presented. 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "I would estimate the patio to be 12'x15'." 
 
Mr. Boos:  "The patio is 17' x 17'." 
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Ms. Peck:  "The reduction of the patio would be less than 1%." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "The hardship is the size of the lot." 
 
Mr. Charipper:  "We can't do much to cut down on this due to the severity of the 
lot." 
 
Mr. Diner:  "We need to take into consideration the size of this undersized lot." 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200'.  The following came 
forward and were sworn in: 
 
Mrs. Furnish, 4 Reading Terrace:  "I have lived here 9 1/2 years directly in front 
of this house moving from Manhattan.  The homes are all similar.  I feel this 
project is too big for the neighborhood." 
 
Mrs. Furnish presented a photo that was marked as Exhibit O-1.  Mrs. Furnish 
described the photo. 
 
Mrs. Furnish:  "The lots are small and when you are outside you are on top of 
each other.  The roofing material they are using is inappropriate and it increases 
the footprint of the house by about 50%.  I feel the integrity of the neighborhood 
should be retained." 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "Our yards are back to back and we are separated by shrubbery.  
This will remain in tact with this addition." 
 
Mrs. Furnish:  "If the shrubs were taken down I would see it." 
 
Mr. Boos:  "There are a lot of porches out the back.  It has been an eclectic 
collection now in Radburn.  Yes, it's an 11% increase, but the design fits with the 
neighborhood.  The roof is less than a 4 and 12 pitch.  This is the only choice I 
have by using a rolled roof.  That is the proper way to do it.  Because of the pitch, 
you don't have proper drainage." 
 
Mr. Karas:  "Can't you use the ice and weather shield?" 
 
Mr. Boos:  "It may or may not work." 
 
Mr. Karas:  "On the survey - what is CB?" 
 
Mr. Boos:  "Concrete block." 
 
Mr. Karas:  "Is the concrete walk still there?" 
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Mrs. Smithlin:  "Yes, it's a common walkway for both houses." 
 
Mr. Karas:  "The patio at the rear - has that been removed?" 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "Yes." 
 
Mr. Nakashian:  "Can you provide a higher pitch to the roof?" 
 
Mr. Boos:  "No." 
 
Ms. Spindel:  "How does this addition line up with the other homes?" 
 
Mr. Boos:  "This is approximately 6' further out." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "How much further out is it?" 
 
Mr. Boos:  "6' additional from what is there." 
 
Ms. Spindel:  "Is it worthwhile to reduce it?" 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "I don't want to expand this without the full benefit of what I 
need." 
 
Mr. Blecher:  "If the construction requires a rolled roof can you put a shingle over 
that for aesthetics?" 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "Yes.  If you go and look at #1 - they have a family room.  What I 
am doing will be identical with that." 
 
Mrs. Furnish:  "When I signed for Radburn I thought they were just closing in the 
porch - this is much more than that.  I don't agree with this." 
 
Ms. Felice Koplik, 6 Reading Terrace, came forward and presented photos that 
were marked as Exhibit O-2. 
 
Ms. Koplik:  "Photo 1 shows the semi detached units 1 and 3 on Randolph 
Terrace.  This shows the existing conditions of the 2 houses being symmetrical.  
Photo 2 shows the 2 houses directly across and are 2 and 4 Reading Terrace.  
Those units also show symmetry.  Photo 3 shows number 1 and 3 on Randolph 
from my window.  Photo 4 is a view toward 3 Randolph to show the environment.  
This shows the scale of the houses in the neighborhood.  Photo 5 is looking at the 
path from the opposite direction.  Item 6 is the site plan from Ray's drawings 
which I clarified with dimensions of my own."   
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Mr. Levy:  "Have you measured out on Photo 4 the porches on the two structures 
closest to the right?" 
 
Mrs Smithlin:  "Those are different from what I will have." 
 
Ms. Koplik:  "Approximately 8'." 
 
Mr. Charipper:  "You are guessing?" 
 
Ms. Koplik:  "Yes." 
 
Ms. Koplik:  "The footprint is a 62% increase.  The building coverage existing is 
22.85% the proposed is 33.63%.  The impervious existing is 45.88% to 53.29%.  I 
have a problem with the rolled roofing - there are none in the area." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "The applicant has agreed to put a shingle roof on." 
 
Ms. Peck:  "The construction code does allow 2 layers in roofing." 
 
Ms. Koplik:  "On the last page of the photos I presented, I am concerned over 
aesthetics." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "You are going with materials with the Radburn setting and designed 
it as such?" 
 
Mr. Boos:  "Yes. This was not a simple thing to do." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "This is not done to a detriment to Radburn?" 
 
Mr. Boos:  "No.  Radburn reviewed this as well and they approved this." 
 
Ms. Koplik:  "We have 2 attached houses, they are symmetrical and this will 
break the symmetry.  That is an aesthetic concern.  This will not blend in.  The 
scale is not in character with the neighborhood.  There is a setback to the path as 
well and this comes out towards the path." 
 
Mr. Larry Koplik, 6 Reading Terrace:  "You have to keep in mind when Radburn 
was designed this pathway was kept in line and has been preserved.  This does not 
fit in with the line of the path.  If this is approved, the feeling will be smaller.  
This would be the first addition in this path." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "Have there been other additions in Radburn that have gone beyond 
what was permitted?" 
 
Mr. Koplik:  "There may have been, but not on this street." 
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Mr. Levy:  "But there have been some that have been approved." 
 
Mr. Koplik:  "That doesn't make it right.  This will be out of context." 
 
Mr. Jules Mesa, 4 Reading Terrace.  "We don't want to stop the Smithlin's from 
developing their property, but this is too much.  We all have the same structure 
and what they are proposing will stick out like a sore thumb.  This will throw off 
the views and there are other ways to make it blend in." 
 
Ms. Koplik:  "There is a photo of 2 Randolph Terrace, and that porch was 
enclosed, but it is no where the size of this proposal." 
 
Mr. Harvey Rubenstein, 28 Rutgers Terrace:  "I don't understand the roof - is it 
coming off the old roof?" 
 
Mr. Boos:  "In order to maintain the height of the existing roof, it has to be a hip 
roof." 
 
Mr. Rubenstein:  "There are 2 conditions of Photo 5 - if you look at the path, it's 
full of water." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "This was taken a few days ago and there has been snow." 
 
Mr. Rubenstein:  "Can this Board ask for a landscape plan?" 
 
Mr. Levy:  "The Board can ask if there is any proposed." 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "We plan to landscape it - we plan to keep most of it in tact.  All 
of the existing landscaping will remain." 
 
Mr. Rubenstein:  "The landscaping in front of the patio will probably be 
removed." 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "No it will not." 
 
Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Ms. Spindel:  "Radburn had no problem with the size of this addition?" 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "No, they only asked for a brick sample." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "Will you provide the Board with a landscape plan?" 
 
Mr. Smithlin:  "Yes." 
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Mr. Karas:  "With this addition at it's deepest dimension is 17' and at its widest 
dimension it is 24.9 1/2'.  That is pretty large.  Would you consider removing that 
portion of the addition that is 10' deep x 5'?" 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "No.  That is a bathroom that is needed." 
 
Mr. Karas:  "Concerning the existing paver blocks - will you consider removing 
that?" 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "We can make it smaller." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "Will you make it to fit a regular size patio table and chairs?" 
 
Mrs. Smithlin:  "Yes." 
 
Mr. Boos:  "The patio will be reduced to 12' x 12'." 
 
Mrs. Spindel made a motion to approve this application:  
 
Mr. Charipper:  "I feel this should be approved.  This is an undersized lot and 
there is a hardship here.  I think the applicant is trying to work with the Board and 
its neighbors.  [Mr. Charipper could not vote - he was out of the room while 
testimony was given].  The Radburn Association did give approval to this 
application." 
 
Mr. Diner seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Karas:  "This requires a balancing.  This is a small lot, and there is only so 
much that can be done.  I still believe this is an oversized addition - NO." 
 
Mr. Nakashian:  "This a small lot, and there is open green space - NO." 
 
Ms. Spindel:  "The lot is less than the required size.  The living space is minimal.  
They're using brick, which will match the others.  The Radburn Association has 
approved this - YES." 
 
Mr. Sacchinelli:  "The addition is oversized - NO." 
 
Mr. Blecher:  "I also feel it is oversized - NO." 
 
Mr. Diner - "YES." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "The materials chosen are in line with Radburn.  The two houses 
closest to the right are wider.  The character of the building has been maintained.  
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The reduction of the patio space has helped with the coverage.  The architecture 
has been retained." 
 
APPLICATION DENIED. 
 

5. Application #2007-012, Alex and Naomy Cuesta 
14-14 6th Street, Block 5725, Lot 6, Zone R-1-3 
Existing lot is 5,000 s.f. where 6,500 s.f. is required.  Existing lot frontage is 50’ 
where 65’ is required.  The proposed 2nd floor addition would increase the 
existing building coverage from 29.12% to 30.57% where 25% is permitted.  
Would increase the existing impervious coverage from 62.63% to 64.07% where 
35% is permitted.  Would have existing front yard setback of 10.3’ where 25’ is 
required.  Would have existing side yard setback of 3.7’ where 8’ is required as 
per Section 125-12 Schedule of area, yard and building requirements. 
 
Alex Cuesta and Mark Gebbia, 14-14 6th Street both came forward and were 
sworn in.  Fees totaling $88.00 have been paid and there is proof of service. 
 
Mr. Gebbia;  "We are doing a 2nd floor addition.  The only reason for the increase 
in coverage is due to the cantilever.  The front yard setback is existing at 10.3'.  
We are not going to that line." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "The only reason for the increase is due to the cantilever?" 
 
Mr. Gebbia:  "Yes." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "There is a resolution from 2002 for a pool - that is there now?" 
 
Mr. Gebbia:  "Yes." 
 
Ms. Spindel:  "I would like to know if some concrete can be reduced." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "There is a resolution attached that shows the impervious coverage at 
42%." 
 
There needed to be some clarification between the 2002 resolution and the current 
application.  A 5 minute recess was taken at this time. 

 
Variance Extension
 

1. Application #2006-015, Amy and Philip Plotch 
17 Bancroft Place, Block 3710, Lot 20, Zone R-1-3 – Addition 
 
Ms. Spindel made a motion to grant this variance for a period of 1 year.  Mr. 
Blecher seconded the motion. 
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Vouchers 
 
1. Karen Kocsis in the amount of $325.00 regarding the January 22, 2007 meeting.  
2. Azzolina & Feury Engineering in the amounts of $1,347.50 regarding Lamring 

Commons; $660.00 regarding Landzettel Realty Co., Inc.; $357.50 regarding Wendell 
Realty; and $$1,485.00 regarding UCP. 

3. Birdsall Engineering in the amount of $205.00 regarding UCP. 
  
Mr. Charipper made a motion to approve these vouchers and Mr. Karas seconded the 
motion. 

 
VOTE:  All Present - YES. 

 
Minutes

 
1. Mr. Charipper made a motion to approve the minutes for the January 22, 2007 

reorganization and regular meeting.  Mr. Sacchinelli seconded the motion. 
 

VOTE:  All Eligible – YES. 
 
Residential New Business (continued) 

 
    5. Application #2007-012, Alex and Naomy Cuesta (continued) 

 
Mr. Levy:  "There was a question on impervious coverage of 42.89% in the 
previous resolution and the current showing 64.07%." 
 
Ms. Peck:  "There was an error made in the calculation and the correct impervious 
coverage is 42.89% and is now being increased to 44.64%." 
 
Ms. Spindel:  "Can you remove the concrete on the side?" 
 
Mr. Gebbia:  "Yes." 
 
Ms. Peck:  "With the removal of that concrete the impervious coverage will be at 
41.92%." 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200'.  No one came forward.  
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the general public.  Mr. Harvey Rubenstein, 28 
Rutgers Terrace:  "What is the height?" 
 
Mr. Gebbia:  "25.2' to the mean and 29.4 to the ridge." 
 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
2/22/07 – Minutes 
Page 17 
 
 

Mr. Karas:  "With respect to the rear of the property, you have a paved driveway, 
it goes beyond the side of the garage.  What is that?" 
 
Mr. Gebbia:  "Inside that area is a patio." 
 
Mr. Nakashian:  "Is it a one family?" 
 
Mr. Gebbia:  "Yes." 
 
Ms. Spindel made a motion to approve this application and Mr. Karas seconded 
the motion. 
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas, Mr. Nakashian, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Sacchinelli, Mr. Blecher,   

  Mr. Charipper and Mr. Levy - Yes. 
 
APPLICATION APPROVED. 
 

6. Application #2007-013, Dan and Natalie Akselrod 
27-02 Urban Place, Block 3416, Lot 6, Zone R-1-3 
Proposed 5’ fence in front yard setback where 3’ is permitted as per Section 125-
38.A.   Shed would have a 0’ side yard setback where 4’ is required.  Would have 
0’ front yard setback where 35’ is required as per Section 125-12 Schedule of 
area, yard and building requirements. 
 
Dan Akselrod, 27-02 Urban Place came forward and was sworn in.  Fees totaling 
$88.00 have been paid and there is proof of service. 
 
Mr. Akselrod:  "There is a 5' fence in the front yard setback." 
 
Ms. Peck:  "Mr. Akselrod is here due to a violation." 
 
Mr. Akselrod:  "The fence is 5' in the rear yard and it is 4' in the front yard.  I 
would like to replace it with a new fence." 
 
Ms. Peck:  "This is a corner lot and it is all in the front yard." 
 
Mr. Akselrod:  "I put the shed in what I thought was my back yard - I didn't know 
it is my front yard." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "If you shift it to the left?" 
 
Mr. Akselrod:  "That's where I have my barbecue." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "Why not move the barbecue?" 
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Mr. Akselrod:  "The shed won't fit there." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "The other thing you want to replace is the 5' fence with a 5' fence." 
 
Ms. Spindel:  "What is the yellow area mean on the survey?" 
 
Ms. Peck:  "That is all the front yard." 
 
Mr. Karas:  "4' is what is needed for the shed?" 
 
Ms. Peck:  "Yes, if it is moved to the left you will still need a variance for 2' but if 
left in the right side, it is in the front yard and would be a bigger variance." 
 
Mr. Karas:  "The fence along Vernon Place, would you consider a 4' fence with 
lattice?" 
 
Mr. Akselrod:  "I was planning on using a 4' picket fence." 
 
Mr. Charipper:  "I also agree with my Board members with moving the shed to 
the other side." 
 
Mr. Akselrod:  "Yes." 
 
Mr. Sacchinelli:  "How big is the shed and how big is the slab?" 
 
Mr. Akselrod:  "7'x7' is the shed and the pad is 8'x8'." 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200'.  No one came forward.  
Harvery Rubenstein, 28 Rutgers Terrace:  "The 4' fence that is existing - is there a 
prior approval?" 
 
Ms. Peck:  "If there is not a prior approval, he needs to get a variance." 
 
Mr. Rubenstein:  "The Ordinance requires 3', where is the hardship here?" 
 
Mr. Akselrod:  "One of the reasons I bought the property was the fence offered 
privacy.  I just would like to replace it." 
 
Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Karas made a motion to approve this application and Mr. Charipper seconded 
the motion. 
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas, Mr. Nakashian, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Sacchinelli, Mr. Blecher,   

  Mr. Charipper and Mr. Levy - Yes. 
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APPLICATION APPROVED. 
 

Vouchers
 
1.  Karen Kocsis in the amount of $325.00 regarding the February 22, 2007 meeting.  

 
Mr. Charipper made a motion to approve this voucher.  Ms. Spindel seconded the motion. 

 
VOTE:  All Present – YES. 

 
 Public Comment 
 
Mr. Harvey Rubenstein, 28 Rutgers Terrace:  "Our Borough Counselor has said that 
people can extend coming before this Board forever.  I've seen the McDonald's and Zap 
Lube applications going on forever." 
 
Mr. Levy:  "They have requested the adjournments and we have granted it.  McDonald's 
is in negotiation with IHOP.  Zap Lube has been in discussions with the Broadway 
Improvement Corporation.  I only object to that they have their signs up there.  They have 
to come in on the next meeting.  I don't want to give another extension." 
 
Mr. Soukas:  "Where there are good reasons for an adjournment, they should be given.  
Extensions should not be given forever. The applicant must give a consent to time for the 
Board to act so there is not an automatic approval." 
 
Resolutions
 

1. Application #2006-086 Bella Stavitsky, 3-16 28th Street, Block 3310, Lot 17, 
Zone R-1-3 – Deck. 

2. Application #2007-001, Alexandra Hofman, 39-26 Vanore Drive, Block 1508, 
Lot 30, Zone R-1-2 – Addition. 

3. Application #2007-002, Felix Strashnov, 2 Harris Place, Block 2708, Lot 18, 
Zone R-1-2 – New single family dwelling. 

4. Application #2007-003, Johan and Amy Israelsson, 14 Brearly Crescent, Block 
3718, Lot 4, Zone R-1-3 – Addition. 

5. Application #2007-004, Rita and Igor Malkovsky, 10-09 Philip Street, Block 
2518, Lot 17, Zone R-1-2 – Addition. 

6. Application #2007-005, Reynaldo Liz, 31-01 Heywood Avenue, Block 2805, Lot 
3, Zone R-1-2 – Addition. 

7. Application #2007-007, Wade and Allison Klein, 5 Barry Place, Block 3802, Lot 
23, Zone R-1-3 – Addition. 

8. Resolution of Approval for 2006 Zoning Board Year End Report. 
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Mr. Karas made a motion to accept these Resolutions and Mr. Charipper seconded the 
motion. 

 
VOTE:  All Eligible - YES. 

 
ADJOURN 
 
Mr. Salerno made a motion to adjourn this meeting and Mr. Sacchinelli seconded the 
motion. 
 
VOTE:  All Present - YES. 
TIME:  11:05 p.m. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      Carol LoPiccolo 
      Zoning Board Clerk 
 


